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1. I am hoping you might be able to answer a quick question regarding RFP PSERS RFP 2017- 1 that will enable my firm to determine if we can respond: do Offerors need to be able to provide consulting services for all private markets asset classes, or will submissions for specialized private markets consultants (e.g. real estate) be considered? Thank you very much for your time.
Response:  Yes, the consultant must be able to provide consulting services on all private market asset classes.  Real Estate is an extremely small part of this RFP; only as related to the Pennsylvania Co-Investment program.
 
1. Would PSERS consider an alternate best practice model of selecting an investment consultant and an independent administrator?  The independent administrator would support PSERS and their selected consultant by providing performance measurement, fee transparency, and the other portfolio administration services that are the core competencies of independent administrators, which are not selling RIA services.  Under this structure, independent administrators do not provide investment advice and therefore would need to not be subject to the mandatory minimum requirements as they relate to being a registered investment advisor and providing investment consulting services.  
Response:  No, the scope of this RFP will be fulfilled by one investment consultant as detailed in the RFP.

1. Are there any potential changes in investment team staffing?
Response:  It is PSERS’ intention to increase the size of the investment team subject to necessary approvals.

1. Have any opportunities been lost because they couldn't be analyzed by existing specialist consultant?
Response:  No.
 
1. Is liquidity at the total plan level expected to impact private markets pacing over next five years?
Response:  Liquidity is a continuing focus at the overall plan level; under current conditions it is not expected to impact private markets pacing over the next five years.

1. Are there any potential changes to the private markets target asset allocations?
Response:  While no major changes are anticipated at this time, asset allocation is presented in detail to, and adopted by, the Board annually at its August meeting.

1. What is PSERS current pacing plans (dollar amounts) for its private markets allocation the next five years?
Response:  PSERS’ current pacing plans include approximately $1.2 billion per year for private markets and approximately $700 million per year for private credit.

1. What is the most important investment issue your private markets program is currently facing?
Response:  The most important investment issue currently facing PSERS’ private markets program is the ability to find investment managers that allow the asset class to remain accretive to the overall performance of the pension fund.

1. The document link for Appendix D, Iran Free Procurement Certification Form, does not have signature box, please advise.
	Response:  The Iran Free Procurement Certification Form can be found at:	http://www.dgs.pa.gov/Documents/Procurement%20Forms/IranFreeProcurementCertif	icationForm.pdf, we apologize for the incorrect reference.

1. Question, III-9 Work Plan, references task descriptions in Part IV of the RFP. Part IV of the RFP, IV-1 is the cost submittal – should we instead refer to III-1 Requested Services?
Response:  Yes, please refer to III-1 Requested Services; we apologize for the incorrect reference.  
1. What prompted your desire to conduct an investment consultant search at this time? 
Response:  Generally, PSERS is permitted to enter into contract terms not exceeding five years; PSERS’ contract for private markets investment consulting services is nearing its required termination date.
1. Who is the current consultant? Is the current consultant being considered as part of this process? Do you have any specific issues in regards to your current consultant?
Response:  PSERS’ current private markets investment consultant is Portfolio Advisors, LLC.  Yes, the current consultant is permitted to submit a proposal in the regular course of this RFP process.  PSERS does not have any specific issues with regard to its current consultant.
1. What are the annual fees for the existing contract that the Board is paying to its current consultant? Are there project-related fees associated with the current arrangement that are not part of the base fee? 
Response:  The annual fee for the existing contract is $1,900,000.  There are no additional project-related fees associated with the current arrangement that are not part of the base fee.
1. Do you have a preliminary schedule of the Board meetings? 
Response:  The preliminary schedule of Board meetings for the remainder of 2017 is:  May 24-25, 2017, June 15-16, 2017, August 10-11, 2017, October 5-6, 2017, and December 7-8, 2017.
1. Do you currently use fund of funds or direct funds for your alternative investments?
Response:  PSERS does not use fund of funds, only direct funds.
1. What is the most important investment issue your Plan is currently facing? 
Response:  PSERS is consistently concerned with obtaining at least the actuarially assumed return with the lowest risk.
1. Are you adopting the ILPA performance disclosure fee template for your program or other similar measures for fee disclosures and do you expect that to impact your potential opportunity set in the future?
Response:  PSERS requests that each of its private markets managers adopt the ILPA fee template, however, adoption is not yet 100%.  PSERS’ requirements regarding the ILPA fee template have not, to date, altered the potential opportunity set.
1. Is fee reduction a primary goal of the private markets program in the near term?
Response:  Yes.
1. How frequently to LP-GP relationships break down in the legal negotiation stage prior to closing, forcing your program to walk away?
Response:  It is rare, but happens occasionally.
1. Section D, Question 1, in the RFP requires that we submit audited financial statements. Being a closely-held Limited Liability Company (LLC), it has been our policy since the inception of the firm not to disclose our financial data unless and until NEPC’s confidentiality agreement has been signed. We have provided a copy of the agreement and will supply our financial data upon receipt of a signed document. 
Response:  All financial data of an offeror, including audited financial statements, is specifically exempted from release pursuant to 65 P.S. §67.708 (b) (26).

1. Part I Section I-4: The RFP states that “For the purpose of this RFP, Private Markets includes: Private Equity, Venture Capital, Special Situations, Private High Yield, and In-House Co-Investment and Secondary programs related to private equity, high yield, real estate and a dedicated Pennsylvania program (which includes all of the above).” 
Question: Can you confirm that real estate will be included in this mandate?
Response:  Real Estate is only included in this mandate as it relates to the Pennsylvania Co-Investment program.

1. Part III Section III-1 A.14: Requires all investment and operational due diligence be posted on the consultant’s on-line reporting system and available to PSERS’ staff. 
Question: Will this information be kept confidential or will it be subject to FOIA requirements?  
Response:  Operational due diligence materials are provided to the Board as part of its confidential Board package, and therefore, PSERS takes the position that such materials are not subject to release pursuant to federal or state freedom of information requirements.

1. Part III Section III-4 D.1: The RFP asks for “Audited financial statements for the past three (3) years, including a breakdown of revenue by line of business”. 
Question: If submitted would this information be exempt from public disclosure under Pennsylvania’s Right-to-Know-Law, 65 P.S. § 67.101, et seq?
Response:  All financial data of an offeror, including audited financial statements, is specifically exempted from release pursuant to 65 P.S. §67.708 (b) (26).

1. How many trips per year does PSERS generally make to the Consultants offices?
Response:  Generally, no more than 0-2 per year.

1. What are the current fees paid to the Private Markets Consultant? 
Response:  The current annual fee for the Private Markets Consultant is $1,900,000.

1. Regarding item III-9 Work Plan – the question notes to use the task descriptions in Part IV as a reference point, but they are actually listed in part III. I want to confirm that we should be referencing the requested services in Part III for the Work Plan. 
Response:  Yes, please refer to III-1 Requested Services; we apologize for the incorrect reference.  

1. Regarding the use of Small and/or Diverse Business contractors – if the Firm self-certifies as a small business, would we be eligible for 100% of the points since we would be the prime contractor? Or would we be required to commit to working with another business? 
Response:  All Small and/or Diverse Business (“SDB”) participation submittals are scored by the Department of General Services, Bureau of Small Business Opportunities in accordance with the rules set out in Part I, Chapter 21, of the Department of General Services Procurement Handbook which can be found at:
http://www.dgs.pa.gov/State%20Government/Materials-and-Services-Procurement/Procurement-Handbook/Pages/default.aspx


1. Regarding Requested Service B.10 – “The consultant will be responsible for providing currency exposure on the underlying investments,” is PSERS referring to the currency in which each underlying fund is denominated or in which each underlying company transacts business? 
Response:  PSERS is referring to the currency in which portfolio company investments are funded and held.

1. Regarding Requested Service B.12 – “The consultant will be responsible for providing sensitivity analysis upon short notice,” in what areas is the sensitivity analysis required? Can PSERS provide a list of all items that would require a sensitivity analysis? 
Response:  Sensitivity analysis is typically required in response to ad hoc requests from Board members or members of the Pennsylvania General Assembly that PSERS is required to answer.  As such, a list of all items that would require sensitivity analysis does not exist.

1. Regarding Requested Service B.15 – Will the consultant will be responsible for ADV monitoring for all funds quarterly or once a year?
Response:  The consultant will be responsible for ADV monitoring as frequently as PSERS’ managers are required to file to confirm that ADV forms for each manager have been filed in a timely manner.

1. Regarding Requested Service B.16 – What is required in the K-1 monitoring?
Response:  The consultant will be responsible for K-1 monitoring as frequently as PSERS’ managers are required to file to confirm that K-1 forms for each manager have been filed in a timely manner.

1. Regarding Requested Service B.17 – “The consultant will be responsible for conducting an annual audit of PSERS’ year-end NAVs for each partnership and comparing that to PSERS’ reported performance and multiple.” Who produces PSERS’ “reported performance and multiple”? Is it the consultant or the custodian? If it is the custodian, does the custodian keep their books open until the actual NAVs are issued at year-end? Is year-end referring to calendar year-end, or to PSERS’s fiscal year-end?
Response:  The consultant is responsible for accumulating the performance and multiple.  The investment manager provides the information for each individual fund, and the consultant is required to roll-up the underlying values to compile PSERS’ total performance and for each individual asset class.

1. Regarding Requested Service B.19 – How active are you in hedging currencies in your alternative portfolio?
Response:  In private markets foreign currencies are hedged at the total fund level not at the portfolio level, based on exposures calculated at the portfolio level.  In private credit and co-investments the exposure is hedged separately, not fund by fund but over the entire asset class.

1. Since PSERS is looking for one or more contractors to provide non-discretionary private markets investment consulting and/or performance measurement services. Should we provide a fee proposal for investment consulting, performance measurement, and all-inclusive services in addition to providing the fees as detailed in Appendix F?
Response:  PSERS is seeking only one consultant that provides investment consulting and performance measurement for private markets and private credit.   Please provide fee breakdown only as detailed in Appendix F.

1. Are any of the co-investments high yield?
Response:  Currently there are two co-investments from the high yield portfolio and allocation exists for additional high yield co-investments.

1. Is PSERS looking for assistance with allocation with new GP relationships (ie: in select circumstances) or are you looking to delegate the responsibility of securing allocation entirely to the consultant? As a part of your current mandate, what % of allocation does PSERS secure and what % of allocation does the current advisor secure? Do you foresee this balance changing in the future? 
Response:  This is a non-discretionary arrangement.  PSERS retains full responsibility for its allocation.  That being said, the process for selecting new managers is collaborative.  PSERS looks for recommendations of managers that the consultant thinks PSERS should consider as part of its portfolio.  There is no particular percentage breakdown to this collaborative effort. 

1. Could you please elaborate on the desired legal services? How does PSERS currently interact with the consultant on legal reviews and negotiations? Is there an anticipated change to the current process? Please elaborate on the scope of services required by the advisor and program guidelines for In-house secondaries and the in-house co-investment programs. On the secondaries side, would this be evaluating secondary managers/buyers or evaluating a potential sale within the PSERS portfolio? On the co-investment side, would this be in addition to the In-State Program? If so, please elaborate on the number of transactions you evaluated over the past three years and the number of deals you invested in through the PE, RE and HY portfolios? What % of deal flow was sourced by PSERS and % of the deal flow was sourced by the consultant? Please explain the timeframe and approval process for co-investments and any additional requirements of the advisor.
Response:  The consultant only becomes involved in legal services if the consultant sources a deal in the Pennsylvania co-investment program.  If PSERS sources the deal, the consultant will perform due diligence and make a recommendation whether PSERS should proceed or not before PSERS’ Allocation Implementation Committee (“AIC”) meets.  All documentation under this scenario is negotiated by PSERS’ in-house counsel.  If the Pennsylvania co-investment deal is sourced by the consultant, the consultant makes a recommendation to the AIC, if the AIC approves the deal, then the consultant handles the entire closing process as they would for a co-investment in their own program; provided however, PSERS’ in-house counsel is required to obtain several Commonwealth specific legal provisions and retains form and legality approval authority.   In addition, PSERS may occasionally seek advice from the consultant regarding specific deal terms PSERS is negotiating with a particular manager.  No changes to the current process are envisioned.  PSERS currently has no plans for a potential sale within the PSERS’ portfolio.  PSERS’ internal co-investment program was established in 2012; since that time 62 private equity and less than 10 high yield potential co-investments have been approved with 42 (this number includes in-state co-investments) private equity and 2 high yield co-investment opportunities being approved.  Outside of the in-state program, this consultant is not responsible for real estate co-investments.  PSERS’ co-investment program invests only in opportunities arising from funds in which PSERS’ already maintains an underlying investment.   PSERS can make a decision to proceed or not within one week. 

1. For the In-State Co-investment program, what % of deal flow has been generated by PSERS and what % of deal flow has been generated by the current consultant? What % of deal flow and deals approved in the portfolio are PE v. RE? Please explain the timeframe and approval process for in-state co-investments and any additional requirements of the advisor.
Response:  The in-state co-investment program was established in April 2015.  Since that time a total of 5 co-investments, all private equity, have been approved.  Approximately 80% of this deal flow has been sourced by the consultant and 20% by PSERS.  From the time PSERS receives a potential co-investment in the in-state program, PSERS’ requirements can be approved with approximately one week.

1. On pg 18 question 12 of the RFP, what types of sensitivity analyses is this question referencing? Please provide additional details.
Response:  Sensitivity analysis is typically required in response to ad hoc requests from Board members or members of the Pennsylvania General Assembly that PSERS is required to answer, such as research across PSERS’ private market funds relating to fees, expenses, and performance.

1. On p19 question 18 of the RFP, please elaborate on what is expected around verification of placement agent fee offsets. What is the frequency of these verifications?
Response:  This varies depending on the specific requests for information related to placement fees received from a variety of sources.  Each request only requires updates since the most recent prior request.

1. On P 19 question 19 of the RFP, please elaborate on what is expected in regards to currency hedge analysis? What is the frequency of this analysis?
Response:  PSERS is required to gather information once per year related to how much has been invested in unhedged specific local currencies.  

1. While the operational due-diligence requirements must be independent, do the written reports of ODD need to be separate from the full manager diligence reports/recommendations?
Response:  No, the ODD reports can be embedded in the full manager reports or separately depending on the preference of the consultant.

1. Confidential Information (Part I-17, Proposal Contents, Section A, Page 5)– we understand from the instructions that we cannot label the RFP confidential, proprietary, or trade-secret protected. However, we want to confirm that in order to ensure that proprietary information is protected, that we just need to complete the “Trade Secret Confidential Proprietary Information Notice Form,” as well provide a redacted version on CD. Do we need to provide a hard copy of the redacted version, as well? Or do we need to take any other steps? 
Response:  No, it is not necessary to provide a hard copy of the redacted version, an no additional action needs to be taken.

1. Small Diverse Business and Small Business Participation Submittal – Many of the third party vendors we use are for the benefit of our entire client base and are not contracted separately with each individual client. Should we include services used across the entire client base? 
Response:  All Small and/or Diverse Business (“SDB”) participation submittals are scored by the Department of General Services, Bureau of Small Business Opportunities in accordance with the rules set out in Part I, Chapter 21, of the Department of General Services Procurement Handbook which can be found at:
http://www.dgs.pa.gov/State%20Government/Materials-and-Services-Procurement/Procurement-Handbook/Pages/default.aspx
PSERS is not authorized to make specific determinations with respect to SDB participation.

1. Is there flexibility to break down the fee into separate components (Ie: With/without legal; ODD services; In-state CI services?)?
Response:  No, please provide fee information in the specific components requested only.  

1. Could you please clarify the below from Appendix A: Section 15 - Does this term pertain to information received about PSERS from persons or organizations not related to PSERS? Does it relate to information received while providing the services?

Confidentiality. The CONSULTANT shall not publish or otherwise disclose, except to PSERS and except matters of public record, any information or data obtained hereunder from private individuals, organizations, or public agencies, in a publication whereby the information or data furnished by or about any particular person or establishment can be identified as relating to PSERS or its responsibilities, except with the consent of such person or establishment.
Response:  This term pertains to information received about PSERS from any source.

1. Regarding Section 15 of Part VI (Contract Terms and Conditions) – Does the below relate to services Hamilton Lane would provide?

POST-CONSUMER RECYCLED CONTENT

a. Except as specifically waived by the Department of General Services in writing, any products which are provided to the Commonwealth as a part of the performance of the Contract must meet the minimum percentage levels for total recycled content as specified on the Department of General Services website at www.dgs.state.pa.us on the date of submission of the bid, proposal or contract offer.

b. Recycled Content Enforcement: The Contractor may be required, after delivery of the Contract item(s), to provide the Commonwealth with documentary evidence that the item(s) was in fact produced with the required minimum percentage of post-consumer and recovered material content.
Response:  No, this language is common to all Commonwealth contracts and will not be pertinent to services provided hereunder.

1. Could you please clarify the scoring formulas for each section of the RFP? We believe there may be a typo in the links provided and would like to better understand this.
Response:  The links provided in Part II-4 correctly direct to the Procurement Resources page of the Pennsylvania Department of General Services website.  Scroll down to the RFP Scoring Formula link to be connected to the scoring formula.

1. If the RFP is to rehire or replace your current private markets investment consultant, what prompted the search?  Is the incumbent consulting firm allowed or encouraged to rebid?  
Response:  Generally, PSERS is permitted to enter into contract terms not exceeding five years; PSERS’ current contract for private markets investment consulting services is nearing its required termination date necessitating issuance of this RFP.  The incumbent is allowed and encouraged to rebid.

1. What is the annual fee being paid to the current consultant(s)?
Response:   The annual fee being paid to the current consultant is $1,900,000.

1. What strategic decisions are currently pending with the current consultant that the new consultant would likely become involved with?
Response:  An example of an ongoing strategic decision is evaluation of private market and private credit forward calendars.  The consultant is also involved in creation of a private credit pacing study.

1. How much capital do you plan to commit to individual investments this year? 
Response:  PSERS plans to commit approximately $1.2 billion to private markets, and $700 million to private credit.

1. Is it anticipated that the private markets consultant will coordinate cash flows or does a third party perform this?
Response:  The consultant will assist PSERS’ staff with projecting and analyzing contributions and distributions on an annual basis.

1. What is/are the program’s current performance benchmark(s)? 
Response:  The private markets benchmark is a custom benchmark based on the Burgiss vintage year median performance.  The private credit benchmark is Bloomberg Barclays US High Yield Index.

1. Please clarify what is specifically requested in Question Part III-1 A. #24, as the elements of the internet-based fund management tool read as being more relevant to public markets managers and/or hedge fund strategies than to private markets funds.
Response:  PSERS requires the consultant to have a system that allows PSERS to directly access online due diligence reports and any analysis of PSERS’ portfolio

1. Please provide examples of other assignments that may be specified by PSERS and the Board (Question Part III-1 A. #27).
Response:  An example of other assignments that may be specified by PSERS and the Board is a request to research on private market managers that invest in a particular geographical area or industry.

1. What level of ADV and K-1 monitoring is expected (Question Part III-1 B. #15-16)?  What is the expected deliverable related to such monitoring?
Response:  The consultant will be responsible for ADV and K-1 monitoring as frequently as PSERS’ managers are required to file to confirm that ADV and K-1 forms for each manager have been filed in a timely manner.  The consultant will be required to provide a report to PSERS detailing any red flags found in the ADV of a manager PSERS is considering retaining or has already retained.
1. Can you please provide the task descriptions referred to in III-9 – Work Plan?  The request states they are located in Part IV of the RFP; however, Part IV appears to be the Cost Proposal and does not have any task descriptions associated with it.  
Response:  Please refer to Part III-1 Requested Services; we apologize for the incorrect reference.  

1. Part I Section I-5 of the RFP provides that, “It is proposed that if the Issuing Office enters into a contract as a result of this RFP, it will be a five-year fee for service based purchase order containing the Standard Contract Terms and Conditions as shown in Part VI and the terms and conditions contained in Appendix A.” If selected to provide private markets investment services, would PSERS be willing to negotiate a consulting agreement such that the contract terms would be mutually acceptable to both parties, including making certain changes to the Standard Contract Terms and Conditions and Appendix A? For example, would respondent be expected to transfer ownership of its opinions and detailed analyses of alternative investments (i.e., intellectual property) merely by providing services to PSERS?
Response:  PSERS is generally willing to negotiate a mutually acceptable consulting agreement with the winning offeror, however, PSERS is permitted to negotiate only limited, non-material revisions to the Standard Contract Terms and Conditions and Appendix A.  Offerors are required to raise any objections to such terms in their proposal.

1. Part I Section I-17.B. of the RFP provides that, “All material submitted with the proposal shall be considered the property of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and may be returned only at the Issuing Office’s option.” Does PSERS expect respondents to transfer intellectual property rights of documents submitted to PSERS such that PSERS can use, copy or redistribute any information submitted through the RFP or is PSERS simply informing respondents that they do not intend to return any documents submitted as part of the RFP response?
Response:  PSERS is informing respondents that PSERS does not intend to return any documents submitted as part of the RFP response to the respondent, however, the Commonwealth has the right to use any or all ideas not protected by intellectual property rights that are presented in any proposal regardless of wither the proposal becomes part of a contract.  PSERS is also required to comply with applicable disclosure requirements.

1. Part II Section II-4.E. of the RFP provides that, “All offerors must complete and return the Iran Free Procurement Certification form, (Appendix D, Iran Free Procurement Certification Form)”. Can you please provide a copy of the Iran Free Procurement Certification Form?
	Response:    The Iran Free Procurement Certification Form can be found at:	http://www.dgs.pa.gov/Documents/Procurement%20Forms/IranFreeProcurementCertif	icationForm.pdf, we apologize for the incorrect reference.

1. Part III Section III-1.A.27 of the RFP provides that the requested services of the consultant shall include “other assignments that may be specified by PSERS and the Board”. Can you please provide additional information as to the types of assignments PSERS and the Board may request assistance with?
Response:  An example of other assignments that may be specified by PSERS and the Board is a request to research on private market managers that invest in a particular geographical area or industry.

1. Part III Section III-10 of the RFP refers to “terms and conditions (contained in Appendix A and Appendix B)”. Can you please provide a copy of the terms and conditions in Appendix B?
Response:  The terms and conditions incorrectly referenced as contained in Appendix B can be found at the link in Part VI.  We apologize for the incorrect reference to Appendix B.

1. Can we please see a copy of the recent report covering the performance of the portfolio and the individual commitments?
Response:  See attached Private Markets Division Quarterly Report Second Quarter 2016.

1. For III-3.1 Please advise what would be sufficient documentation of private markets investment consulting clients which date back three years. Client contracts are confidential. Will the supplied referees suffice?
Response:  A list of names of private markets investment consultant clients which dates back three years will suffice.

1. For III.9 Work Plan. This references Part IV: "Use the task descriptions in Part IV of this RFP as your reference point." Is this the correct reference?
Response:  Please refer to III-1 Requested Services; we apologize for the incorrect reference.  

1. Please confirm whether the hired consultant will be responsible for real estate investment consulting?
Response:  The hired consultant will be responsible only for performing due diligence on potential real estate co-investments located within Pennsylvania.

1. What is the incumbent currently being paid?
Response:  The current annual fee for the Private Markets Consultant is $1,900,000.








